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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Lucina Land Development Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Lucina Land Development
Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company ”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and
its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group), which comprise the Consolidated balance sheet as at
31 March 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the Consolidated
Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(‘The Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under
section 133 of the Act, of the Consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2025, its
Consolidated loss and Consolidated total comprehensive income, it’s Consolidated changes 1n equity and
its Consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance n our
audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the Consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. we have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated 1n our report.
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Key Audit Matter

Audit RSS_POIISC

The Group’s policies on revenue recognition is
set out in Note 5.6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As per the principles of Ind AS 115 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers”, revenue from
sale of residential/commercial properties  is
recognized when the performance obligations are
essentially complete.

The performance obligations are considered to be
complete when control over the property has
been transferred to the buyer ie. offer for
possession of properties have been issued to the
customers.

The amount of revenue and cost thereon on
contracts with customers forms a substantial part
of the statement of profit and loss and
Management judgement is also involved in the
interpretation of these conditions.

The above transaction required audit focus due to
the significant impact of the same on the
accompanying financial statement of the Group.
The matter has been considered to be of most
significance to the audit and accordingly, has been
considered as a key audit matter for the current
year audit,

Our audit procedures related to the revenue recognition q
included, but not limited to the following:

° Evaluated the appropriateness of the Group’s
tevenue recognition policies with respect to the
principles of Ind AS 115;

° Enquiring from the management and irlspecting the
internal controls related o revenue recognition for
ensuring the completeness of the customer sales,
issue of possession letters and the recording of
customer receipts;

o  We have performed the following procedures for
revenue recognition:

a.  Verification of the possession letters issued on
sample basis along with the proof of deliveries to
ensure completeness;

b.  Verification of the collection from customers for
the units sold from the statement of accounts on
a sample basis to ensure receipt of the amount;
and

C. Performing cut-off procedures and other
analytical procedures like project wise variance
analysis and margin  analysis o find any
anomalies.

e Ensured that the disclosure requirements of Ind A5
115 have been complied with.

Assessing the cartying value of inventory

The accounting policies for Inventories are set
out in Note 5.5 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

Inventories of the Group comprise of real estate
properties (including land) are disclosed under
Note 12,

Impairment  assessment of inventory s
considered as a significant risk as there is a risk
that recoverability of the carrying value of the
inventory could not be established, and potential
impairment charge might be required to be
recorded in the consolidated financial statements.
Management’s assessment of the recoverable
amounts is a judgmental process which requires
the estimation of the net realisable value, which
takes into account the valuations of the properties
held and cash flow projections of real estate
properties under development.

Due to their materiality in the context of the
Group’s financial statements as a whole and

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of inventory held
by the group included, but not limited to the followings:

o  Obtained an understanding of the management process
for identification of possible impairment indicators and
process performed by the management for impairment
testing and the management process of determining the

Net Realisable Value (NRV);

° Enquired of the management and inspected the internal
controls related to inventory valuation along with the
process followed to recover/adjust these and assessed
whether impairment is required,

¢ All material properties under development as atr 31
March 2025 were discussed on case-to-case basis with
the management for their plan of recovery/adjustment:

® Forreal estate properties under development, obtained
and assessed the management evaluation of the NRV'
We also  assessed  the management’s  valuation
methodology applied in deterrm'm'ng the recoverable
amount and tested the underlying assumptions used by
the management in arriving at those projections;
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Audit Response

Key Audit Matter

significant degree of judgement and subjectivity
involved in the estimates and key assumptions
used in determining the cash flows used in the
impairment evaluation, this is considered to be
the area which had the greatest effect on our
overall audit strategy and allocation of resources
in planning and completing our audit.

We challenged rthe management on the underlying
assumptions used for the cash flow projections,
considering evidence available to support  these
assumptions and our understanding of the business;
Where the management involved specialists to perform
valuations, evaluated the objectivity and independence
of those specialists;

For land parcels, obtained and verified the valuarion of
land parcels as per the government prescribed circle

rates, \Vherever necessfuy;

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the cash flow

projections; and

standards.

We assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of the
disclosures made by the management for the impairment
losses recognized in accordance with applicable accounting

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Reportt thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility 1s to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
teport, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. Reporting under this section is not applicable as no other information is obtained at the date of this
auditor’s report.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of
the Consolidated financial position, Consolidated financial performance, Consolidared total comprehensive
income, Consolidated changes in equity and Consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material nusstatement, whether due to fraud or error , which




have been used for the purpose of preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of the
Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies are also responsible for overseeing financial reporting
process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements asa
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 2 material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individuaﬂy or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Undey section 143(3)()) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial’ Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
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We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the Consolidated Financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements tegarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current year and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The Consolidated Financial Statement inclides the audited financials of 11 subsidiaries, whose financial
statements reflects total assets of T 326.1 millions, total revenue ¥ 28.3 millions, total net profit/(loss) after
tax of ¥ 19.8 millions, total comprehensive Income of Z 19.8 millions and cash outflow (net) of  0.00 millions
for the year ended 31 March 2025, as considered in the Financials Statement, which have been audited by
their respective independent auditor. The Independent Auditor’s reports on financial statements of the above
said entities have been furnished to us and our opinion on the consolidated financial reports, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the above said entities, is based on solely on the
report of such auditors and procedure performed by us.

The audit of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 was not carried our and
reported by us, figures of Consolidated Financial Statements of year ended 31 March 2024 are management
certified figure which are neither subjected to audit nor reviewed by the statutory auditors of the company.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and
on the consideration of report of the other auditor on separate financial statements and the other
financial information of the subsidiary companies incorporated in India, as noted in the ‘Other
Matter’ paragraph we give in the ‘Annexure A’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraph
3(xxi) of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books,

¢) The Consolidated Financial Statements dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.




d)

g)

In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written represeatations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31 March 2025 taken on record by the Board of Direcrors of the Holding
Company, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “‘Annexure B’

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31 March 2025— Refer Note 49 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2025.

iit. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the | nvestor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and 1its subsidiaries during the year ended
31 March 2025.

iv. (a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act have represented to us and the other auditor of such subsidiary that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries
to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manaer whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Holding Company or any of such
subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act have represented to us and the other auditor of such subsidiary that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries from
any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimare
Beneficiaries; and

() Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the
subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has
caused us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (1) and
(i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.
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V.

Vi,

The Holding Company and its subsidiaries has not declared and paid dividend during the
year.

As stated in note 52 to the consolidated financial statements and based on our examination
which included test checks, the Company, in tespect of financial year commencing on 1
April 2024, has used an accounting softwares for maintainjng its books of account which
have feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares except that, the
audit trail logs were not enabled for changes made using privileged access rights for direct
data changes at the database level. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with other than the consequential
impact of the exception given above. Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by
the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention except that the audit
trail at the database level for the Company has not been preserved in the accounting
software for the period 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024,

k) With tespect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2025 hasn’t been paid/provided
by the Holding Company and its subsidiary to its directors in accordance with the provisions
of the section 197 read with schedule V to the Act.

For Raj Girikshit & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regitfation No.: 02

Gaurav
Partner

Membership No.: 518698
UDIN: 2551864 8aMIPAPUT D4

Place: Delhi

Date: 29 May 2025



ANNEXURE ‘A’ REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON
OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN
DATE

Lucina Land Development Limited (“the Company™)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and

(xxi) Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors Report) Order
(CARO) repotts of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements are:

r Clause number of
Name of Subsidiary CIN Relation ‘L}L‘:Ci"f;)uz%(’:;
or adverse
Albina Real Estate Limited U45400D12007PLCI63019 | Subsidiary xvii
Devona Infrastrucrure Limited U45400MH2007PLC 304087 Subsidiary Xvii
Serida Properties Limited U45400DL2008PLC172631 Subsidiary xvii
Noble Realtors Limited U7010IMH2003PLC310111 | Subsidiary | w1
Nilgiri Infrastructure Development Subsi diary R}
Limited U70101MH2006PLC308863 xvii
Cetes Constructions Limited U70109MH2006PLC304648 | Subsidiary | weii ]
Vindhyachal Infrastructure Limited U70109MH2006PLC308865 ’ Subsidiary xvii
Shivalik Properties Limited U70109MH2006PLC310113 | Subsidiary xvii
Airmid Properties Limited U45400MH2007PLC303665 | Subsidiary xvii
Corus Real Estate Limited U45400MH2007PLC305634 | Subsidiary i

For Raj Girikshit & Associates
CharteredA ccountants
Firm’s egistration No.;

Gaurgy
Partne

Membership No.: 518
UDIN: 9595, 8 69

Place: Delhi
Date: 29 May 2025



Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the
Holding Company on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 of even date.

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of Lucina
Land Development Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in
conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance
Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable tinancial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and both, issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial control system with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and  their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements, assessing the risk that 2 material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal contro] based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of Consolidated Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper Mmanagement override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies have, in all material respects, adequate
internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statemments and such internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements were operating cffectively as at 31 March 2025,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note issued by ICAL

For Raj Girikshit & Associates

Partner
Membership No.: 518698

UDIN: 2551869 8 M) P PAPY T 06

Place: Delhi

Date: 29 May 2025



Lucina Land Development Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note (X in Million) (% in Million)
I ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6A 9.60 10.40
Goodwill on consolidadon 57 0.00 0.00
Intangible assets 6B - -
Financial assets
Investments TA - -
Other financial assets 8 A 8.60 0.50
Deferred tax assets, net 9 10.70 503.20
Non-current tax assets, net 10 40.70 46.20
Other non current assets 1A 8.90 -
78.50 560.30
Current assets
Inventories 12 11,303.80 11,612.30
Financial assets
Investments 7B 25.70 20.20
Trade receivables 13 50.70 184.60
Cash and cash equivalents 14 8.80 80.20
Other bank balances 15 5.80 45.90
Loans 16 81.30 81.90
Other financial assets 8B 5.60 -
Other current assets 11B 110.10 116.40
11,591.80 12,141.50
Total of Assets 11,670.30 12,701.80
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 17 A 0.50 0.50
Instruments entirely equity in nature 17B 276.50 276.50
Other equity 18 (11,392.90) (9,413.40)
(11,115.90) (9,136.40)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Habilities
Borrowings 19 A 1,064.30 982.10
Lease liabilities 20 A 320 -
Other financial liabilides 21 A 10.70 -
Provisions 22 A 27.00 30.50
1,105.20 1,012.60
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 198 12,423.60 11,612.60
Lease liabilities 20 B 0.90 -
Trade payables 23
-total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 7.70 5.90
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 374.80 312.70
Other financial liabilities 21B 25.20 109.50
Other current liabilides 24 8,663.80 8,607.20
Provisions 228 177.80 177.70
Current tax labilities (net) 25 7.20 -
21,681.00 20,825.60
Total of Equity & Liabilities 11,670.30 12,701.80
Summary of material accounting policies 5

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
This is the consolidated balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Raj Girikshit & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Meyyappan Ramanathan Manish Riyal
Wh time Director Director
I [DIN:08226172]

Place: Delhi

Date: 29 May 2025
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Lucina Land Development Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended

Revenue

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Revenue

Expenses

Cost of revenue
Cost incurred during the year
(Increase)/decrease in real estate properties

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Total Expenses

Loss before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional items
Loss before tax
Tax expense
Current tax (including earlier years)
Deferred tax charge/(credit)
Loss after tax

Other comprehensive income
(®) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans

Note

26
27

28

(ii) Tncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(i) Trems that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Total other comprehensive income net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year

Net loss attributable to
Owners of the holding company
Non controlling interests

Other comprehensive income is attributable to
Owners of the holding company
Non controlling interests

Total comprehensive income is attributable to
Owners of the holding company
Non controlling interests

Earnings per equity share

Equity share of face value ¥ 10/-each
Basic (%)
Diluted )

Summary of material accounting policies

wa
G

5

31 March 2025
 in Million)

102.90
86.00
188.90

683.10

(610.10)
163.80
250
550
17030
415.10

I

I/

(226.20)
(918.70)
(1,144.90)

l

6.80
492.50
(1,644.20)

6.60

I

6.60
(1,637.60)

|

!I

(1,644.20)

I

(1,644.20)

l

6.60

|

6.60

I

(1,637.60)

|

(1,637.60)

l

(32,884.98)
(32,884.98)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

This is the consolidated statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date

For Raj Girikshit & Associates
Chartered g\ccountants

Place: Delhi
Date: 29 May 2025

LOIN-2.5518698BMIPAPUY 0 ¢

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

31 March 2024
( in Million)

251.70
13.60
265.30

1,035.60

(920.40)
172.30
1.30
410
405.90
698.80

(433.50)
(720.30)
(1,153.80)

39.10
0.70)
(1,192.20)

(1.50)

(1.50)

(1,193.70)

(1,193.70)

(23,841.30)
(23,841.30)

Meyyappan Ramanathan Manish Riyal
Whole- time Director Director
[DIN:0QN9949) [DIN:08226172]

Yash Garg
Company Secrgtas



Lucina Land Development Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the Year ended

A. Cash flow from operating activities:

oy

Loss before tax
Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Interest expenses on income tax

Interest income on fixed deposits

Interest income on income tax refund

Financial guarantee income

Loss on property, plant and equipment sold/ written off

Income on fair valuation of financial instruments

Profit on sale of Investments

Provisions for employee benefit & others

Bad debts wrtten off

Provision for.onerous loss expenses

Excess provision/liabilities written back
Operating loss before working capital changes
Working capital changes

Inventores '

Trade receivables

Other current and non-current assets

Other current and non-current financial assets

Trade payables

Financial liabilittes, other Liabilities and provisions
Cash used in operating activities

Income tax (paid) / refund received, net
Net cash used in operating activities

- Cash flow from investing activities:

Purchase of Property plant & equipment

Proceeds from sale/ (investment) in mutual fund (net)
Inter-corporate loans and advances received back (net)
Movement in bank deposits (net)

Interest on fixed deposit

Net cash generated from investing activities

. Cash flow from financing activities: (Refer note 51)

Proceeds of term loan from non banking finance company
Repayment of term loan to non banking finance company
Proceeds from issue of non-convertible debenutres
Redemption of non-convertible debentures

Interest and other finance cost paid

Lease liabilities

Proceeds from inter-corporate borrowings

Repayment of inter-corporate borrowings

Net cash generated from financing activities

- Increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
- Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D+E)

Notes:

Reconciliation of cash & cash equivalents as per consolidated financial statements

Cash and cash equivalents includes (refer note 14)
Cash on hand

Balances with banks - in current accounts

Bank deposits with original maturity up to three months

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

This is the consolidated statement of cash flow referred to in our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

l 1 Meyyappan Ramanathan

Whole- time Director
[DIN:07139949]

For Raj Gigiishit & Associates

Gaurav (Go
Partner

Place: Delhi
Date: 29 May 2025

Uoin-255(8648 BMIpAPUT 06

Company Secret

31 March 2025
(% in Million)

(1,144.90)

(1,046.70)
1,100.00

I

31 March 2024
(X in Million)

(1,153.80)

{2.80)
410
1.30

1,200.00
(217.90)

(1,602.70)
(307.00)

1,612.30
(323.80)
360.90

l

I

66.10
14.10
80.20

I

l/

0.10
29.60
50.50
80.20

Manish Riyal

[DIN:08226172)



Lucina Land Development Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity as at 31 March 2025

A Equity share capital* ( in Million)
Particulars Balance as at Balance as at Balance as at
01 April 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2025
Equity share capital 0.50 0.50 0.50

B TInstruments entirely equity in nature’

Particulars Balance as at Balance as at Balance as at

01 April 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2025
Optionally convertible debentures 276.50 276.50 276.50
Total 276.50 276.50 276.50

C Other equity¥
Particulars Other Reserves and surplus Other Total
components of]| comprehensive
equity income
General Debenture Retained Re-measurement
Reserve redemption earnings of defined benefit
reserve plans

Balance as at 01 April 2023 29.40 204.80 324.00 (9,124.30) 1.80 (8,564.30)
Loss for the year - - - (1,192.20) - (1,192.20)
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans, (net of tax) - - - - (1.50) (1.50)
Movement in deferred employee compensation reserve (29.40) 29.40 - - - -
Transfer from statement of profit and loss - 324.00 (324.00) - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - 558.20 - (10,316.50) 0.30 (9,758.00)
Loss for the year - - (1,644.20) - (1,644.20)
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans, (net of tax) - - - - 6.60 6.60
Corporate guarantee given by holding company 2.70 -, - - - 2.70
Balance as at 31 March 2025 2.70 558.20 - (11,960.70) 6.90 (11,392.90)

¥or details (refer note 17.4)
*for details (refer note 17B)
**¥or detatls (refer note 18)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

This is the consolidated statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

For Raj Girikshit & Associates
Chartered A

Partner
Membership Number:

Place: Delhi
Date: 29 May 2025

UoiN - 255 186A8RM™M| PAPUTO6

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

W Manish Riyal

Meyyappan Ramanathan
Whole- time Director

[DIN:07119949)]

Director
[DIN:08226172]




Lucina Land Development Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2025

1. Group information and nature of principal activities
Lucina Land Development Limited (“the Holding Company”) was incorporated on July 25, 2006 as Lucina Land
Development Private Limited and is engaged in development of real estate project and the other related and ancillary
activities. The company is involved in developing a project - "Indiabulls Greens Panvel" located at Paavel, Raigad District,
Maharashtra.
Lucina Land Development Limited (‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries are together referred to as ‘the Group’ in
the following notes.

2. General information and statement of compliance with Ind AS
These consolidated financial statements (‘consolidated financial statements’) of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with the Indian Accounting Standards as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA’)), as amended and other relevant
provisions of the Act. The Group has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR’ or R or ‘Rs.”) which is the functional currency

of the Group and all values are rounded to the nearest millions, except where otherwise indicated. Values below 250,000 are
stated as 0.00.

Entity specific disclosure of material accounting policies where Ind AS permits options is disclosed hereunder.

The Group has assessed the materiality of the accounting policy information which involves exercising judgements and
considering both qualitative and quantitative factors by taking into account not only the size and nature of the item o
condition but also the characteristics of the transactions, events or conditions that could make the information more likely to
impact the decisions of the usets of the consolidated financial statements.

Entity’s conclusion that an accounting policy is immaterial does not affect the disclosures requirements set out in the
accounting standards.

Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued Accounting Standard is itially adopted or a
revision to an existing Accounting Standard requires a change in the Accounting Policy hitherto adopted.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 were authorized and approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 29 May 2025. The revision to the consolidated financial statements is permitted by the Board of
Directors after obtaining necessary approvals or at the instance of tegulatory authorities as per provisions of the Act.

3. Recent accounting pronouncement
Ministry of Cotporate Affairs (‘MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended 31 March 2025, MCA notified new
accounting standard Ind AS 117- Insurance Contracts, which has no impact on the Group consolidated financial statements.
Further the MCA has made certain amendments to Ind AS 116- Leases, in particularly related to sale and lease back
transactions, which has an applicability from 1 April 2024, and has no significant impact on consolidated financial statements.

On 7 May 2025, MCA notifies the amendments to Ind AS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. These
amendments aim to provide clearer guidance on assessing currency exchangeability and estimating exchange rates when
currencies are not readily exchangeable. The amendments are effective for annual petiods beginning on or after 1 April 2025.

The Group is currently assessing the probable impact of these amendments on its consolidated financial statements.

4. Basis of accounting
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India. Further, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except
for certain financial assets and financial liabilities and share based payments which are measured at fair values as explained in
relevant accounting policies. Fair valuations related to financial assets and financial liabilities are categorised into level 1, level
2 and level 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable.

5. Summary of material accounting policies
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the material accounting policies and measurement bases
summarised below. These were used throughout all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements.




Lucina Land Development Limited

Summary of material accounting
year ended 31 March 2025

5.1 Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

policies and other explanatory information for consolidated financial statements for the

Subsidiaties are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group has power over the investee and is exposed to, or has rghts to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities
of the entity. The Group has power over the investee even if it owns less than majority voting rights i.e. rights arising
from other contractual arrangements. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date when control ceases. Statement of profit and loss (including other

) of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period are recognised from the

The Group combines the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaies line by line adding together
like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains/(losses) on transactions between group companies ate eliminated. The accounting principles and policies have
been consistently applied by the Group.

Non-controlling interests, presented as part of equity, represent the pottion of a subsidiary’s statement of profit and loss
and net assets that is not held by the Group. Statement of profit and loss balance (including each component of OCI) is
attributed to the equity holders of the Holding Company and to the non-controlling interests basis the respective
ownership interests and the such balance is attributed even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit

balance.

5.2 Current versus non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in Companies Act 2013, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and non-cutrent

liabilities, as the case may be.

5.3 Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if

capitalization ctiteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

and Loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful fives)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis of useful lives
(as set out below) presctibed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

Asset class Useful life
Plant and equipment 12 —15 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computers 3 — 6 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 years

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciatiog are reviewed at the end of each financial year.




Lucina Land Development Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2025

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is tecognised in statement of profit and
loss when the asset is derecognised.

5.4 Intangible assets
Recognition and initial measurement
Intangible assets (software’s) are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if

capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its wotking condition for the intended use.
Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent measurement (amortisation )
The cost of capitalized software is amortized over a period in the four years from the date of its acquisition.

De-recognition

Intangible assets are de-recognised upon disposal or when no further economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is de-
recognised.

5.5 Inventories

Land other than that transferred to real estate properties under development is valued at lower of cost of net realizable value.
Real estate properties (developed and under development) includes cost of land under development, internal and external
development costs, construction costs, and development/ construction materials, borrowing costs and related overhead costs

and is valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs of necessary to make the sale,

5.6 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control is transferred and is accounted net of rebate and taxes. The Group applies the revenue
recognition ctiteria to each nature of the revenue transaction as set out below.

For each performance obligation identified, the Group determines at contract inception whether it satisfies the performance
obligation over time or satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time. If an entity does not satisfy a performance
passage of time is required.

When either party to a contract has performed, an entity shall present the contract in the balance sheet as a contract asset or a
contract liability, depending on the relationship between the entity’s performance and the customer’s payment.




Lucina Land Development Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2025

Revenue  froms business management & support services
Income arising from business management & support services is recognised in the period in which the services are rendered.
The Group considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price.

Revenue from facility maintenance services
Revenue from facility maintenance services is recognized on accrual basis and billed to the respective customer, on a periodic
basis.

Tuterest income
Interest income is recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Interest on delayed receipts, cancellation income and transfer fees from customers are recognized on accrual basis except in
cases where ultimate collection is considered doubtful.

5.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

statement of profit and loss. If, at the reporting date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no
longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount. Impairment losses
previously recognized are accordingly reversed in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

5.8 Financial instruments
Non-derivative financial assets

Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets are tecognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset is also adjusted.

Suibsequent measurement

i, Debt instruments at amortised cost — A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following
conditions are met:

® The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

°  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method.

i.  Equity investments — All equity investments in scope of ‘Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments’ (‘Ind AS 109°) are
measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are generally classified as at fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL). For all other equity instruments, the Group decides to classify the same either as at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) or fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

1. Mutual funds — All mutual funds in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Group

has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset measured at amortized cost {ot, depending on the business
model, at fair value through other comprehensive income).

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Recognition and initial measuremens

All financial Labilities are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition of the
financial liabilides is also adjusted.




Lucina Land Development Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2025

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

De-recognition of financial liabilsties

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is dischatged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability measured at amortized cost (or, depending on the business model, at fair value
through other comprehensive income). The difference in the tespective cartying amounts is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is 2 promise by one party (the guarantor) to another (the holder) to make payments
if a specified debtor fails to meet their financial obligations as per the terms of contracts. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognized as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is
measured at the higher of the amount of expected loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of
Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortization.

Derivatives

The Group has entered into certain forward (derivative) contracts to hedge risks. These derivatives are initially recognised at
fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such derivative contract is recognised as
income or as expense for the period.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

5.9 Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss for financial assets. The Group factors historical trends and forward-looking information to assess expected
credit losses associated with its assets and impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit tisk.

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires measurement of loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses
that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Other financial assets

In respect of its other financial assets, the Group assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased significantly
since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit
losses. The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition, if
the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

5.10 Employee benefits

Defined comtribution plan

The Group’s contribution to provident fund is charged to the statement of profit and loss or inventorized as a part of real
estate properties under development, as the case may be. The Group’s contributions towards provident fund are deposited
with the regional provident fund commissioner unde d contribution plan.
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settlement using the actuarial assumptions used to re-measure the net defined benefit liability (asset). Actuarial gains/losses
resulting from re-measurements of the liability are included in other comprehensive income.

Other long-term emplyyee benefirs

The Group also provides benefit of compensated absences to its employees which are in the nature of long -term employee
benefit plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to be availed more than one year after
the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the
projected unit credit method as on the teporting date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recorded in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which such gains or losses

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits comprise of employee costs such as salaries, bonus etc. is recognized on the basis of the
amount paid or payable for the period during which services are rendered by the employee.

5.11 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of
the amount of obligation can be made at the teporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted

material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:
®  Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Group or

® DPresent obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed. However, when realization of income is virtually certain, related asset
is recognized.

Provision for onerous contracts
A provision for onerous contracts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the expected benefits to
be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under

5.12 Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the related disclosures,

Significant management Judgements

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment
of the probability of the Group’s future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets
requires assessment of several external and internal fa s.which could result in deterioration of tecoverable amount of the
assets.




Lucina Land Development Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2025

Recoverability of advances/receivables — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over
expected life, the management assesses the expected credit losses on outstanding receivables and advances.

Provisions — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Group
assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual future outcome may
be different from this judgement.

Significant estimates

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these
estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utilisation of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of undetlying assumptions
such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these
assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments
(where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how
market participants would price the instrument.




Lucina Land Development Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

6A Property, plant and equipment- Tangible Assets (R in Million)
Particulars Building  Plant and Office Computers Furniture Vehicles Ships Right of Total
machinery equipment and fixtures use assets

Gross carrying amount

At 1 April 2023 4.80 106.00 9.30 19.00 2.50 8.90 7.90 - 158.40
Additions - - 0.20 3.20 0.20 - - - 3.60
Disposals/assets written off ’ (4.20) (74.60) (8.60) (16.50) (2.10) (6.10) - - (112.10)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.60 31.40 0.90 5.70 0.60 2.80 7.90 - 49.90
Additions 0.20 - 0.30 0.50 0.20 - - 5.10 6.30
Disposals/assets written off - - - - ) - (2.50) (7.90) - (10.40)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 0.80 31.40 1.20 6.20 0.80 0.30 - 5.10 45.80

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 April 2023 4.80 95.60 8.70 17.90 1.90 7.50 5.20 - 141.60
Charge for the year - 3.80 0.30 0.90 0.20 0.50 0.60 - 6.30
Adjustments for disposals (4.20) (72.30) (8.60) (16.40) (1.70) (5.20) - - (108.40)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.60 27.10 0.40 2.40 0.40 2.80 5.80 - 39.50
Charge for the year B 2.10 0.10 1.60 - - 0.50 1.20 5.50
Adjustments for disposals - - - - - (2.50) (6.30) - (8.80)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 0.60 29.20 0.50 4.00 0.40 0.30 - 1.20 36.20
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 - 4.30 0.50 3.30 0.20 - 2.10 - 10.40
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2025 0.20 2.20 0.70 2.20 0.40 - - 3.90 9.60

1) During the year ended 31 Macch 2025 the group has not inventoised Depreciation on Plant & Machinery ( Previous year € 2.20 million)
i) There are no contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipments.
i)y Property, plant and equipment have been pledged as security against Non Covertible Debenture issued.
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

6 B Other Intangible assets  in Million)
Softwares Total

Gross carrying amount
At 1 April 2023 12.60 12.60
Disposals/assets written off (12.60) (12.60)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - -
Disposals/assets written off - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 - -
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 Apal 2023 12.50 12.50
Adjustments for disposals (12.50) (12.50)

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Amortisation charge for the year
Adjustments for disposals

Balance as at 31 March 2025

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2024

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2025

There are no contractual commitments for the acquisition of intangible assets.
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Note -7

A Investments - non-current
Investment in debentures
Unquoted
Fellow Subsidiary
Sentia Developers Limited

720,301(31 March 2024: 720,301) 0.0001% optionally convertible debentures of I 1000 each fully paid up*

Less: Impairment in the value of investments

Aggregate book value of unquoted investments

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

( in Million) ( in Million)
720.30 720.30
(720.30) (720.30)

* Investment in optionally convertible debentures in fellow subsidiary have been shown at carrying value, as carrying value represent the best estimate of fair value.

B Investments - current
Investment in mutual funds s quoted
Trust mutual fund liquid fund - Direct Plan - Growth*

[20,483.73 (31 March 2024 17,808.90) Units NAV: 1,256.09 (31 March 2024: 1,133.60)]

Aggregate book value/ market value of quoted investments

*Of the above Investment in mutaal fund, investment worth 25.10 millions (19,982.28 Units), (31

Note - 8
A Other financial assets - non-current
Unsecured, considered good

Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months(refer note 15)

Security deposits
Financial gnarantee asset

B Other financial assets - current
Unsecured, considered good
Deposits with Government authories
Pinancial guarantee asset

Note-9

Deferred tax assets, net

Deferred tax asset arising on account of ;
Provision of employee benefits
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Ind AS transition adjustments in retained earning

The group has decided to restrict recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
tax assets in near future. The group has unabsorbed business loss t
group has not created deferred tax assets on these unabsorbed loss

Caption wise movement in deferred tax assets as follows:

25.70 20.20
25.70 20.20
25.70 20.20
March 2024 :¥ Nil) are pledged or lien marked.
0.10 0.10
1.20 0.40
7.30 -
8.60 0.50
0.60 -
5.00 -
5.60 -
7.20 8.10
3.50 4.40
- 490.70
10.70 503.20

es considering uncertainty involved around future taxable income.,

on brought forward losses to the extent there is no reasonable assurance for realisation of deferred
hat are available for offsetting for 2 maximum period of eight years from the incurrence of loss. The

Particulars 01 April 2023 Recognised/ Recognised / (Reversed) in 31 March 2024
(Reversed) in profit and loss
other

comprehen-

sive income
Deferred tax asset arising on account of :
Provision of employee benefits 7.30 (0.50) 1.30 8.10
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 3.90 - 0.50) 4.40
Ind AS transition adjustments in retained earning 490.80 - 0.10) 490.70
Total 502.00 (0.50) 0.70 503.20
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31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(X in Million) (X in Million)
Caption wise movement in deferred tax assets as follows:
Particulars 01 April 2024 Recognised/| Recognised /(Reversed) in 31 March 2025
(Reversed) in profit and loss
other
comprehen-
sive income
Deferred tax asset arising on account of :
Provision of employee benefits 8.10 - 0.90) 7.20
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 4.40 - 0.90) 3.50
Ind AS transition adjustments in retained earning 490.70 - (490.70) -
Total 503.20 - (492.50) 10.70
Note - 10
Non-current tax assets, net
Advance income tax, including tax deducted at source 40.70 46.20
40.70 46.20
Note - 11
A Other non-current assets
Prepaid expenses 8.90 -
8.90 -
B Other current assets
(Unsecured , Considered Good)
Advance to staff 0.10 -
Mobilization advances 46.30 50.00
Advance to material / service providers 39.70 49.50
Prepaid expenses 5.70 2.00
Balances with statutory authorities 18.30 14.30
Others - 0.60
(Unsecured , Considered Doubtfuf)
Advance for land 18.20 18.20
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful advances (18.20) (18.20)
110.10 116.40
Note - 12
Inventories
A Real estate properties - under development, at cost
Cost of properties under development 22,158.70 21,494.30
Less: transferred to developed properties (10,271.60) (10,245.70)
11,887.10 11,248.60
B Real estate properties - developed, at cost
Cost of developed properties 10,271.60 10,245.70
Less: cost of revenue recognized till date 10,087.30 10,061.90
184.30 183.80
C Construction materials in stock, at cost 151.10 179.90
D Provision for onerous loss (918.70) -
11,303.80 11,612.30

(i) During the year ended March, 2025 the group has inventorised borrowing cost of T 110.70 million (Previous year ¥ 164.50 million), and inventorised Depreciation of

Nil ( Previous year % 2.20 million).

i) During the financial year ended 31 March 2025, the group has assessed the financial viability of its ongoing real estate development roject as an onerous contract in
g ¥y group ty going 1% p

accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. Due to adverse market conditions, escalated

construction costs, and a reduction in expected sales revenue from the project, the unavoidable costs of fulfilling the contractual obligations under the Project exceed the

expected economic benefits. Accordingly, the group has recognized a provision of T 918.70 million in respect of the estimated loss on the Project.

(iii) Also refer note 19 for mortgage detail.

(iv) The weighted average rate of interest capitalisation is in the range of 13.50% basis the underlying borrowings of respective entities.

Note - 13
Trade Receivables
Trade Receivables*

(1) Considered good - Unsecured

*The group does not have any receivables which are either credit impaired

*Refer note 19 for mortgage detail.

.\ ‘5““ & AS,S-

50.70

184.60

50.70

184.60

e there is significant increase in credit risk
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31 March 2025 31 March 2024

 in Million) ( in Million)
As at 31 March 2025
Particulars Less than 6| 6 months to| 1-2years 2-3years | More than 3 years Total
months lyear
() Undisputed trade receivables - considered good - 0.40 19.60 2.50 28.20 50.70
@) Undisputed trade receivables - considered doubtful (Having - - - - - -
significant increase in risk)
(iif) Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed trade receivables - considered good - - - - - -
(v) Disputed trade receivables - considered doubtful (Having - - - - - -
significant increase in risk)
(vi) Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Less than 6| 6 months to| 1-2years 2-3years | More than 3 years Total
months 1year
() Undisputed trade receivables - considered good 118.10 - 1.20 25.30 40.00 184.60
(i) Undisputed trade receivables - considered doubtful (Having - - - - - -
significant increase in risk)
(i} Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired - B - - - -
(iv) Disputed trade receivables - considered good - - - - - -
(v) Disputed trade receivables - considered doubtful (Having - - - - - -
significant increase in risk)
(vi) Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - - -
Note - 14
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.20 0.10
Balances with banks
In current accounts 8.60 29.60
Bank deposits with original maturity up to three months - 50.50
8.80 80.20
Note - 15
Other bank balances
Bank deposits¥
With maturity of more than three months and up to twelve months 5.80 45.10
With maturity of more than twelve months 0.10 0.10
5.90 45.20
Less: Non-current bank balances in fixed deposit accounts (refer note 8) 0.10) 0.1
5.80 45.10
Interest Accrued on bank deposits - 0.80
5.80 45.90

*Fixed Deposit (excluding accrued interest) with banks of 25.80 million (31 March 2024: % 45.10 million) are pledged for the purpose of Bank Guarantee.
*Fixed Deposit (including accrued interest) of 20.10 millions (31 March 2024:  0.10 million) are kept under lien as Guarantee.

Note - 16
Loans - current*
Considered good - Unsecured

Inter-corporate loans to related parties 78.80 78.80
Loans to employees 2.50 3.10
81.30 81.90

*The group has not given any loans which is either credit impaired or where there is significant increase in credit risk
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vii

5.

31 March 2025 . 31 March 2024

® in Million) ® in Million)
Note - 17 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Equity share capital Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised ( in Million) (X in Million)
Equity share capital of face value of 10 each 50,000 0.50 50,000 0.50
50,000 0.50 50,000 0.50
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity share capiral of face value of ¥ 10 each 50,000 0.50 50,000 0.50
50,000 ~0.50 50,000 0.50
Reconciliation of number and amount of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Equity shares
Balance at the beginning of the year 50,000 0.50 50,000 0.50
Add: Issued during the year - - -
Less: Redeemed during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 50,000 0.50 50,000 0.50

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The holders of equity shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entided to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. In the
eveat of liquidation of the Company, the remaining assets of the Company shall be distributed to the holders of equity shares in proportion to the number of shares held
to the total equity shares outstanding as on that date. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

50,000 (Previous Year 50,000) equity shares of the Company is held by holding company namely Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as Equinox India
Developments Limited, and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) and its nominees.
Details of shareholder holding more than 5% equity share capital and shares held by the Holding Company

Number of Number of
Name of the equity shareholder shares shares

Embassy Developments Limited (Formexly known as Equinox India Developments Limited, and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate

Limited)* 50,000 50,000
*including nominee shares holders

Company does not have any shares issued for consideration other than cash duaring the immediately preceding five years. Company did not buy back any shares during
immediately preceding five years. Company does not have any shares reserved for issue under options.

i Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2025 is as follows :

Share Held by Promoters

Promoter Name As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Number of shares % Total of Shares Number of | % Total of Shares % Change
) shares during the year
Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly] 50,000 100 50,000 100 -

known as Equinox India Developments
Limited, and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate
Limited) (including nominee shares holders)

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2024 is as follows :

Share Held by Promoters

Promoter Name As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Number of shares % Total of Shares Number of | % Total of Shares % Change
shares during the year
Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly| 50,000 100 50,000 100 -

known as Equinox India Developments|
Limited, and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate

Limited) (including nominee shares holders)

Note - 17 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Instruments entirely equity in nature Number Amount Number Amount
Optionally convertible debentures ("OCDY  in Million)  in Million)
Issued aad fully paid up

0.0001% Optionally convertible debentures of face value of ¥ 2,76,450 276.50 2,76,450 276.50

1,000 each fully paid up

2,76,450 276.50 2,76,450 276.50

Reconciliation of number of optionally convertible debentures outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Optionally convertible debentures

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,76,450 276.50 2,76,450 276.50
Transferred to equity on account of modification of terms during

the year (refer note iii below)
Balance at the end of the year

2,76,450 276.50 2,76,450 276.50
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31 March 2025 31 March 2024
® in Million) R in Million)

iii Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to optionally convertible debentures
During the year ended March 31, 2014, the Company had issued 2,688,109 optionally convertible debentures of face value of ¥ 1000 each bearing interest @ 0.0001%
per annum to its holders. These debentures are convertible into equity shares at the option of the holder within 20 years from the date of issue. If holder does not
exercise its right of conversion, the debentuses will be redeemed at the end of the perod of 20 years. During the year ended March 31, 2015, the Company has
Redeemed 542,000 optionally convertible debentures of face value of ¥ 1,000 each. During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company has Redeemed 1,869,659
optionally convertible deébentures of face value of %1,000 each.

Effective from March 1, 2020, the terms of the OCD have been changed. As per the revised terms, OCD are Convertible or redeemable at the option of issuer, on or
before the expicy of the term. OCD are convertible in the rato of one equity share for each OCD.

6,600, 65,300 and 204,600 Optiomally Convertible Debentures are held by Elena Properties Limited , Citra Developers Limited and Selene Infrastructure Limited
respectively as on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

Note - 18
Other equity
Other components of equity 270 -
General reserve 558.20 558.20
Retained earnings (11,953.80) (10,316.20)
(11,392.90) (9,758.00)
General reserve
The holding company is required to create a general reserve out of the profits when the company declares dividend to shareholders.
Note - 19
A Borrowings non-current
Secured loans:
Debentures (a)
Non-convertible debentures (redeemable) (refer note 1 below) 1,064.30 -
Less: Cutrent maturities of non-current borrowings - -
Sub total (a) 1,064.30 -
Note i
Repayment terms (including current maturities) and security details for non-convertible debentures:
Particulars Maturity date Security 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
® in Million) (X in Million)
The debenture trustee has sanctioned 95,000 Repayable in first 6 quarterly installments of Refer Note 2 %1,100.00 million -
secured, redeemable, non-convertible 388 million each and remainging 4 quartecly below (Before Ind AS adjustment of ¥
debentures of face value of Z0.10 million each at installments of T 143 million each. 35.70 million)

coupon rate of 13.50%. Out of which, the
Company has alloted 11,000 ("NCDs” or
“Debentures™), on 30 January 2025 on private
_Pplacement basis for T 1,100 millions.
These non-convertible debenture was listed on the Wholesale Debt Market segment of BSE Limited.
Note 2:
Details of security
(1) First ranking and exclusive mortgage over secured Immoveable property and Project of Lucina Land Development Limited, RGE Constructions and Development
Private Limited, Citra Properties Limited and Sion Eden Developers Private Limited.
(i) First ranking exclusive security intecest over Project Receivable of Lucina Land Development Limited, RGE Constructions and Development Private Limited, Citra
Properties Limited, Diana Infrastructure Limited and Sion Eden Developers Private Limited.
(iff) First ranking exclusive pledge over the shaces of Lucina Land Development Limited, RGE Constructions and Developmeat Private Limited, Citea Properties

Limited, Diana Infrastructure Limited and Sion Eden Developers Private Limited.

(iv) Corporate Guarantee given by Embassy Developments Limited (formerly known as Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate
Limited), RGE Constructions and Development Private Limited,Citra Properties Limited, Diana Infrastructure Limited and Sioa Eden Developers Private Limited.

Term loan (b)
Term loan from non banking finance company (refer note 1 below) R 982.10
Sub total (b) - 982.10
Note 1:
Repayment terms (including current maturities) and security details for term loan:
Particulars Repayment Security 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
® in Million) ® in Million)
Piramal Enterprises Limited sanctioned a term  The holding company has repaid entire loan Refer Note 2 - 982.10
loan of ¥ 3,000.00 millions @13% on 25th outstanding on 30 Januacy 2025 below

September 2023. The company has drawn T
1,200.00 million out of the sanctioned limit. The
interest rate is linked to the Piramal Peme
Lending Rate (PPLR). The Company has repaid
entire loan outstanding amount on 30 January
2025

STREARN
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31 March 2025 31 March 2024
R in Million)  in Million)

Note 2;

Details of security

(i) First ranking and exclusive mortgage on project land.

(if) First ranking exclusive charge by way of hypothecation over project receivables, project collection account and immovable assets of the project.

(i) Charge over escrow account as permitted under applicable law.

(iv) 100% share pledge of the borrowing entity.

(v) Unconditional and irrevocable corporate guarantee of Indiabulls Real Estate Limited, Diana Infrastructure Limited, Indiabulls Infraestate Limited and Nilgir
Infrastructure Projects Limited including its resulting entity formed by merger, if any.

(vi) First ranking exclusive charge by way of hypothecation over sold receivables (net of pending cost if any) from project Indizbulls Blu.
(vii} First ranking exclusive charge by way of hypothecation over sold receivables (net of pending cost if any) from project Indiabulls Greens- Phase 1.

(viif) Land in Kon- Panvel region having market value of ¥ 900 millions and laad in Savroli region having market value of T 500.00 million.

Total (a)+(b) 1,064.30 982.10
Note - 19
B Borrowings - current
Unsecured loans
Loans from related parties (refer note 46)# 12,423.60 11,612.60
12,423.60 11,612.60

#Carrying nil interest rate and repayable on demand.

Note - 20
A Lease liabilities(refer note 36)
Non-current lease liabilities 3.20 -
3.20 -
Note - 20
B Lease liabilities(refer note 36)
Current lease Labilities 0.90 -
0.90 -
Note - 21
A Other financial liabilities - Non -current
Security deposits from customers- non- current 3.10 -
Financial guarantee liabilities 7.60 -
10.70 -
Note - 21
B Other financial liabilities - current
Accrued employee benefits 21.90 4.00
Interest accrued but not due on term loans - 8.70
Expenses payable 0.60 96.80
Financial guarantee liabilities 2.70 -
25.20 109.50
Note - 22
A Provisions - non-current
Provision for employee benefits: (refer note: 47)
Gratuity 19.60 24.50
Compensated absences 7.40 6.00
27.00 30.50
Note - 22
B Provisions - current
Provision for employee benefits: (refer note: 47)
Gratuity 1.00 1.20
Compensated absences 0.60 0.30
Provision for interest to customer 176.20 176.20
177.80 177.70
Note - 23
Trade payables - current
Due to micro and small enterprises* 7.70 5.90
Due to other than micro and small enterprises
Due 1o related parties 4.50 -
Due to others 129.00 78.90
Retention Money 241.30 233.80

382.50 318.60
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31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(X in Million) ® in Million)

Trade Payables ageing as at 31 March 2025

Outstanding for the year ended 31 March 2025

Particulars Not due Less than 1 year lyearto 2 2yearto3 | More than 3 years Total
year year
{© MSME - 7.70 - - - 7.70
(i) Other than MSME 241.30 99.70 30.30 1.00 2.50 374.80
(iif) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - N
{iv) Disputed dues - Other than MSME - - - - - -

Trade Payables ageing as at 31 March 2024

Outstanding for the year ended 31 March 2024

Particulars Not dues Less than 1 year lyearto 2 2yearto3 | More than 3 years Total
year year
i) MSME - 5.90 - - - 5.90
(ii) Other than MSME 233.80 13.80 64.20 - 0.90 312.70
(i) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Other than MSME - - - - - -

*Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act, 2006 as at 31 March 2025, 31 March 2024 :

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(X in Million) R in Million)

1) |the principal amount temaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year; 770 5.90
i) [interest due thereon @ Nil Nil
iif) Jthe amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the amounts of the payment made Nil Nil

to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

iv) {the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but Nil Nil
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act;

v) [the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and Nil Nil

vi) |the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the Nil Nil

interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23.

The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information
available with the Company.

Note - 24

Other current liabilities

Payable to statutory and government authorities 43.30 29.20

Advance from customers 8,620.50 8,578.00

8,663.80 8,607.20

Note - 25

Current tax liabilities, net

Provision for income tax, net of advance tax and tax deduc 7.20 -
7.20 -
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31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(X in Million) ® in Million)
Note - 26
Revenue from operations
Operating revenue
Revenue from real estate properties 47.00 11130
Sale of land and commercial property 3.40 -
Revenue from business management & support services - 101.90
Other operating income
Income from maintenance services* (2.30) 8.70
Interest from customers on overdue balances 4.50 +.40
Service and forfeiture receipts 40.10 14.10
Income from recovery on site 8.10 1130
Sale of scrap 2.10 -
102.90 25170
* Due 1o reversal of incomee recognized in earlier year .
Note - 27
Other income
Interest income on fived deposits 3.60 2.80
Interest income on optionally convertible debentures 0.00 0.00
Interest income on income tax refund 0.40 2.10
Profit on sale of investments, net 0.30 2.10
Balance witten back 80.40 4.10
Miscellaneous income 0.20 2.30
Income on fair valuation of financial instruments 0.30 0.20
Interest income on security deposits 0.10 -
Financial guarantee income 0.70 -
86.00 13.60
Note - 28
Cost of revenue
Costincurred during the year 629.60 1,009.30
(Increase)/decrease in real estate project under development
Opening stock 11,612.30 10,691.90
Closing stock ' (12,222.40) (11,612.30)
Operating expenses related to maintenance business 53.50 26.30
73.00 115.20
Note - 29
Employee benefits expense
Saladies and wages 131.40 155.90
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 3.50 1.20
Gratuity and leave encashment 7.00 5.30
Staff welfare expenses 0.10 0.00
Bonus and ex-gratia 21.80 9.90
163.80 172.30
Note - 30
Finance costs
Interest expenses on:
Interest on lease liability 0.70 -
Interest expenses on taxation 0.50 1.30
Financial guarantee expenses 1.30 -
Interest expense on debentures 0.00 0.00

2.50 1.30
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i)

i)

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(R in Million) ® in Million)
Note - 31
Other expenses
Advertisement expenses - 0.90
Auditor's remuneration (refer note 1) 0.70 2.50
Bad debts written off 9.10 3.20
Bank charges 0.10 0.10
Business promotion and marketing expenses 1.20 58.60
Business support services expenses 9.80 -
Communication expenses 0.30 0.50
Conveyance expenses 0.30 0.40
Corporate social responsibility expenses (refer note if) - 23.60
Customer inceative and other charges 118.70 283.70
Legal expenses 9.90 9.80
Loss on sale /written off of property, plant and equipment L.70 3.70
Miscellaneous expenses 0.50 0.80
Printing and stationery expenses 0.30 0.10
Professional expenses 12.20 12.20
Rates and taxes 3.20 2.90
Rent expenses - 0.20
Repairs and maintenance- vehicles 0.70 1.30
Repairs and maintenance- others 0.70 0.50
Software expenses - 0.80
Travelling expenses 0.90 0.10
170.30 405.90
Details of auditor's remuneration
Auditor's remuneration
Audir fee 0.60 2.40
0.60 2.40
Corporate social responsibility expenses
Gross amount required to be spent by the group during the year is Nil (previous year ¥ 23.60 million ).
N For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Gross amount required to be spent by the group during the year - 23.60
Amount Contributed during the year - 20.00
Amount pending to be transferred to implemening agency for ongoing project* - 3.60
Nature of CSR activities NA Multiple activities**
Detail of related party transactions NA NA

*During the previous year as per the agreement between the group and the implementing agency for ongoing projects, the group was liable to transfer % 3.60
millions to implementing agency on demand, and the same was deposited in a special bank account as prescirbed by CSR rules, within the specified period.

**Infrastructure Initiative, Health and Hygiene initiative , Support Schooling needs for special children.

Note - 32
Income tax
Tax expense comprises of;

Current income tax, including earlier year tax expenses 6.80 39.10
Defetred tax (refer note 9) 492.50 0.70)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 499.30 38.40

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expected fax expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of the group at

25.168% (Previous Year 25.168%)and the reported tax expense in profit or loss are as follows:

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic effective tax rate

Accounting profit/ (loss) before tax from operations (1,144.90) (1,153.80)
Accounting profit/ (loss) before income tax (1,144.90) (1,153.80)
At statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (31 March 2024: 25.168%) 25.168% 25.168%
Computed expected tax expense (288.10) (290.40)

The group has unabsorbed business loss, that are available for offsetting for a maximum period of eight years from the incurrence of loss. The group has not

created deferred tax assets on these unabsorbed losses conside; ainty involved around fiiture business income.

DELHI
fC | FRN-022280N
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31 March 2025 31 March 2024

® in Million) (X in Million)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income;
Tax impact of expenses which will never be allowed - (6.90)
Tax impact of expenses which will be allowed in furure 288.10 (0.40)
Tax impact of brought forward losses setup during the year - 116.00
Earlier year tax expenses 6.80 39.10
Deffered Tax assets reversed/ (recognised) 492.50 (0.70)
Income tax expense 499.30 (143.30)
Note - 33
Earnings per share (EPS)

The Holding Company's Earnings per Share ("EPS") is determined based on the act profit attributable to the shareholders. Basic earnings per share is
computed using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average
number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the year including share options, except where the result would be anti-

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders for basic earnings (1,644.20) (1,192.20)
Profit/ (loss) attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effect of dilution (1,644.20) (1,192.20)
Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic earning per share* 50,000 50,000
Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution * 50,000 50,000

*There was no transaction which have impacted the calculation of weighted average number of shares. No other transaction involving Equity shares or
potential Equity shares was present between the reporting date and the date of authorsation of these financial statements.

Earnings per equity share
(1) Basic %) (32,884.98) (23,841.30)
(2) Diluted (%) (32,884.98) (23,841.30)
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Note - 34
A)  Financial Instruments by category
(X in Million)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
FVIPL FVOCI Amortised cost FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost
(See note 1 (See note 2 (See note 1 (See note 2

below) below) below) below)
Financial assets
Investments

Debentures - - - - - -
Mutual funds 25.70 - - 20.20 - -
Trade receivables - - 50.70 - - 184.60
Loans - - 81.30 - B 81.90
Cash and cash equivalents - - 8.80 - - 80.20
Other bank balances . - - 5.80 - - 45.90
Other financial assets. - - 14.20 - - 0.50
Total financial assets 25.70 - 160.80 20.20 - 393.10
Notes
1. These financial assets are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit and loss.
2. These financial assets represent investments in equity instruments designated as such upon initial recognition.
® in Million)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

FVTPL FvVOcCI Amortised cost FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost
Financial liabilities
Borrom'ngs (mcluding interest accrued) - - 13,487.90 - - 12,603.40
Trade payables - - 382.50 - - 318.60
-Ot}?gr' financial liabilities including lease ; ) 40.00 B ) 100.80
liabilities ,
Total financial liabilities - - 13,910.40 - - 13,022.80

B)
@

ii)

iv)

v)

Fair value measurements

Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The
theee Levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows-

Level L: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of

observable market data rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value ® in Million)

31 March 2025 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets
Financial instruments at FV TPL

Investment in Mutual Fund 25.70 - - 25.70
Total financial assets 25.70 - - 25.70
( in Million)

31 March 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets
Financial instruments ar F VIPL
Investment in Mutual Fund 20.20 - - 20.20

Total financial assets 20.20 - - 20.20

Financial instruments measured at amortised cost
For Amortised Cost instruments » careying value represents the best estimate of fair value.

Risk Management

The Group’s activities expose it to the market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Group's risk management framework. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the
tisk and the related impact in the financial statements.

Valuation process and technique used to determine fair value
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
() Use of net asset value for mutual funds on the basis of the at received from investee party.
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Note -35

Financial risk management

The group’s activities expose it to market rigk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The board of directors has overall responsibility for establishment and oversight
of group's risk management framework, This note explains the sources of rsk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the dsk and related
impact in the financial statements.

Credit risk

Credit disk management
Credit risk rating

A: Low credit risk
B: Moderate credit risk
B: High credit sk

Asset group Basis of categorisation Provision for expected credit loss

Lowcredit risk  |Cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans and other financial 12 month expected credit loss, life time expected credit loss

assets

In respect of trade receivables, the group recognises a provision for lifetime expected credit loss.

Based on business environment in which the group operates, a default on a financial asset is considered when the counter party fails to make payments
within the agreed time period as per contract. Loss rates reflecting defaults are based on actual credit loss experience and considering differences between
current and historical economic conditions,

Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring bankruptcy or a litigation decided against the group.
The group continues to engage with parties whose balances are written off and attempts to enforce repayment. Recoveries made are recognised in statement
of profit and loss. ’

Assets under credit risk — % in Million)
. 31 March 31 March
o P
Credit rating |Particulars 2025 2024
Low credit sk [Cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans and other financial assets 186.50 413.30

Concentration of financial assets
The group's principal business activities are development of real estate projects and all other related activities, The group's outstanding receivables. are for real
estate project. Loans and other financial statements majorly represents inter-group loans and other advances.

Credit risk exposure
Provision for expected credit losses
The group provides for expected credit losses for following financial assets —

Assets under credit risk — (R in Million)
Credit rating Particulars 31 March 31 March
2025 2024
A Investments 25.70 20.20
A Cash and cash equivalents 8.80 80.20
A Trade receivables 50.70 184.60
A Loans 81.30 81.90
A Other bank balances 5.80 45.90
A Other financial assets 14.20 0.50

The tisk parameters are same for all financial assets for all period presented. The group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset
and whether there has been 2 significant increase in credit risk on an on-going basis throughout each reporting period. In general, definition of default is
determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-economic factors.

As at 31 March 2025 (X in Million)
Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit Cartying amount net of
carrying amount at default losses impairment provision

Investments 746.00 720.30 25.70
Cash and cash equivalents 8.80 - 8.80
Trade receivables 50.70 - 50.70
Other bank balances 5.80 - 5.80
Loans 81.30 - 81.30
Other financial assets 14.20 - 14.20
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As at 31 March 2024

(R in Million)
Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount net of
carrying amount at default losses impairment provision

Investments 740.50 720.30 20.20
Cash and cash equivalents 80.20 - 80.20
Trade receivables 184.60 - 184.60
Other bank balances 45.90 - 45.90
Loans 81.90 - 81,90
Other financial assets 0.50 - 0.50

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

The group’s trade receivables does not have any

payment. During the periods presented, the group made no write-offs of trade receivables and no rec

(B) Liquidity risk

Maturities of financial liabilities

expected credit loss as registry of properties sold is

generally carried out once the group receives the entire

overles from receivables previously written off.

The tables below analyse the group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual matuities.

(% in Million)
31 March 2025 Lessthanl | Betweenl | Between 2 | Between3 | More than 4 Total
year and 2 years | and 3 years | and 4 years years
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 12,423.60 176.00 352.00 536.30 - 13,487.90
Trade payables 382.50 - - - - 382.50
Other financials liabilities including lease liabilities 26.10 3.10 3.60 3.90 3.30 40.00
Total 12,832.20 179.10 355.60 540.20 3.30 13,910.40
( in Million)
31 March 2024 Lessthan1 | Betweenl | Between 2 Between 3 | More than 4 Total
: year and 2 years | and 3 years | and 4 years years
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 11,612.60 982.10 - - - 12,594.70
Trade Payables 318.60 - - - - 318.60
Other financials liabilities including lease liabilities 109.50 - - - - 109.50
Total 12,040.70 982.10 - - - 13,022.81

(C) Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk

The group’s fixed rate borrowings are not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the

will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates,

Sensitivity

There are no variable rate borrowings hence no senstivity exist for interest rates change.

(ii) Price risk

The group does not have any price risk.
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Lease related disclosures as per Ind AS 116

The group has leases for office building. With the exception of short-term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the balance
sheet as a tight-of-use asset and a lease liability. Variable lease payments which do not depend on an index or a rate are excluded from the initial measurement of
the lease liability and right of use assets. The group classifies its right-of-use assets in a consistent manner to its propetty, plant and equipment.

Lease payments not included in measurement of lease liability
The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease Liability is as follows:

(X in Million)
Particulars 31March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Short-term leases - -
Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March 2025 is ¥ 1.40 Million (31 March 2024: Nil).
Total expense recognised during the year
(X in Million)
Particulars 31March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Interest on lease liabilities 0.70 -
Depreciation on right of use asset 1.20 -
Maturity of lease liabilities
The lease liabilities are secured by the related underlying assets. Future minimum lease payments were as follows:
(R in Million)
31 March 2025 Minimum lease payments due
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
Lease payments 1.30 1.40 1.40 1.20 5.30
Interest expense 0.40 0.40 0.30 0.10 1.20
Net present values 0.90 1.00 1.10 1.10 4.10
31 March 2024 Minimum lease payments due
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
. years
Lease payments - - - - -
Interest expense - - - - -
Net present values - - - - -
Information about extension and termination options (31 March 2025)
Right of use assets Number of Range of Average Number of Number of Number of
leases remaining term | remaining lease leases with leases with leases with
(in years) term extension option| purchase option| termination
(in years) option
Office premises 1 4 4 1 0 1
Information about extension and termination options(31 March 2024)
Right of use assets Number of Range of Average Number of Number of Number of
leases remaining term | remaining lease leases with leases with leases with
(in years) term extension option | purchase option| termination
(in years) option
Office premises - - - - - -
Bifurcation of lease liabilities at the end of the year in current and non-current (R in Million)
Particulars 31March 2025 | 31 March 2024
1) Current liability (amount due within one year) 0.90 -
b) Non-current liability (amount due over one vear) 3.20 -
Total lease liabilities at the end of the year 4.10 -
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Note -37
Revenue related disclosures
A Disaggregation of revenue

Set out below is the disaggregation of the group’s revenue from contracts with customers:

( in Million)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) Revenue from operations
(a) Revenue from sale of properties and developed plots 47.00 11130
(b) Sale of land and commercial property 3.40 -
() Other operating income 42.30 27.20
Total revenue covered under Ind AS 115 92.70 138.50
B Contract balances
The following table provides information about reccivables and contract liabilities from contract with customers:
(% in Million)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contract liabilities
Advance from consumers 8,620.50 8,578.00
Total contract liabilities 8,620.50 8,578.00
Receivables
Trade receivables 50.70 184.60
Total receivables 50.70 184.60

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract liability is the entity"

goods or services to a customer for which the entity has received consideration from the customer in advance. Contract assets are transfer

the rights become unconditional and contract liabilities are recognised as and when the performance obligation is satisfied.

C  Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows:

s obligation to transfer
red to receivables when

(R in Million)

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Contract liabilities Contract liabilities
Advances from consumers Advances from consumers
Opening balance 8,578.00 8,125.20
Addition during the year 92.90 564.10
Adjustment on account of revenue recognised (50.40) (111.30)
Closing balance 8,620.50 8,578.00

D Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, mandatory for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018, replaces existing revenue recognition
requirements. The application of Tad AS 115 has impacted the group's accounting for recognition of revenue from real estate projects. The group has applied full
retrospective approach in adopting the new standard and accordingly restated the previous period numbers basis completion of contract for all the real estate
projects across India. The following table summarises the impact on transition to Ind AS 115 on each individual line items. Line items that are not affected by

changes have not been included.

E  Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract revenue:

(R in Million)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contract revenue from sale of properties and developed plots 50.40 111.30
Revenue recognised 50.40 111.30
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Note - 38
Details with respect to the Benami properties

31 March 2024,

Note - 39
Undisclosed income

There is 0o such income which has not been disclosed in the books of accounts. No such income is surrendered or disclosed as income during the year ended
31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 in the tax assessments under Income Tax Act, 1961.

Note - 40
Wilful Defaulter
No bank or financial institution has declared the any group company as "Wilful defaulter" during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Note - 41

Relationship with Struck off Companies

No transaction has been made with the company struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the
year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Note - 42
Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies:

All applicable cases where registration of charges or satisfaction is required with Registrar of Companies have been done. No registration or satisfaction is
pending for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

Note - 43
Compliance with number of layers of companies:
The group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers)

Rules, 2017 and no layers of companies has been established beyond the limit prescribed as per above said section / rules, during the year ended 31 March 2025
and 31 March 2024.

Note - 44
Loan or advances granted to the promoters, directors and KMPs and the related parties:

Particular 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Type of Borrower Amount of Loan or Amount of Loan or Percentage to the total Loans Percentage to the total Loans
advance in the nature | advance in the nature and advances in natures of and advances in natures of
of loan outstanding of loan outstanding loans(%) loans(%)
(¥ in millions) (® in millions)
Related Parties (Refer note: 45, ) 78.80 78.80 97% 96%
Total 78.80 78.80

These loans are granted to related parties which are repayable on demand.
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Note- 45
Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:
®  To ensure Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, and
* To provide adequate return to shareholders

Management assesses the capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The Group manages
the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. The Group manages its capital requirements by reviewing its net debt position, where net debt is equal to non-
current borrowing (including current maturities of non-cutrent borrowings) and short-term borrowing net of cash and cash
equivalent and other bank balances.

Note- 46
Related party transactions
Relationship - Name of the related parties
1) Related parties exercising control
- Holding Company Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as Equinox India

Developments Limited, and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)

- Key Managerial Personnels Meyyappan Ramanathan (Whole- time director)
1) Other related parties

- Fellow subsidiary Companies* Elena Propertes Limited
Diana Infrastructure Limited
Devona Constructions Lirnited (Formerly known as Indiabulls
Constructions Limited)
Citra Developers Limited
Selene Infrastructure Limited
Citra Properties Limited
RGE Constructions And Development Private Limited
Sion Eden Developers Private Limited
Equinox India Infraestate Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls
Infraestate Limited)
Sentia Developers Limited

* With whom transactions have been made during the year /previous year.

a) Statement of material transactions with related party:

(% in million)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Loans taken /(repaid), net
- Embassy Developments Limited (Fotmerly known as Equinox India (238.20) 249.30
Developments Limited, and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)
- Devona Constructions Limited (Formetly known as Indiabulls 40.50 1,104.70
Constructions Limited)
- Citra Properties Limited 426.00 -
- Equinox India Infraestate Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls 102.90 -

Infraestate Limited)
- Sepset Real Estate Limited 135.20 -
Business management & support services:
- Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as Equinox India 11.90 101.90
Developments Limited, and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) ) )
Corporate Guarantee given by
- Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as Equinox India 9,500.00 B

Developments Limited, and earlier Indiabulls ReatFsratg Limited)
-\@W\ SN

i
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-~ Sion Eden Developers Private Limited 9,500.00 -
- Citra Properties Limited 9,500.00 -
- _RGE Constructions Developments Limited 9,500.00 -
- Diana Infrastructure Limited 9,500.00 -
b) Statement of balances outstanding:
R in million)
Particulars As at As at
31 Match 2025 31 March 2024
Loans & Advance taken:
- Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as Equinox India 238.60 476.80
Developments Limited, and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)
-Devona Constructions Limited (Formerly Indiabulls Constructions Limited) 11,176.30 11,135.80
- Citra Properties Limited 426.00 -
- Equinox India Infraestate Limited (Formetly known as Indiabulls Infraestate 102.90 -
Limited)
- Sepset Real Estate Limited 135.20 -
Loans given
- Diana Infrastructure Limited 78.80 78.80
Material Advance given
- Devona Constructions Limited (Formerly Indiabulls Constructions Limited) 23.00 23.00
Optionally Convertible Debentures Holder:
- Elena Properties Limited 6.60 6.60
- Citra Developers Limited 65.30 65.30
- Selene Infrastructure Limited 204.60 204.60
Trade Payable
- Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as Equinox India 4.40 -
Developments Limited, and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)
Trade Receivable
- Embassy Developments Limited (Formetly known as Equinox India - 118.20
Developments Limited, and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)
Corporate Guarantee given by
- Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as Equinox India 9.500.00 )
Developments Limited, and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) i
- Sion Eden Developers Private Limited 9,500.00 -
- __Citra Properties Limited 9,500.00 -
- RGE Constructions Developments Limited 9,500.00 -
- Diana Infrastructure Limited 9,500.00 -
Investment in Optionally Convertible Debentures
- Sentia Developers Limited 720.30 720.30

Note- 47
Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Group has made Z 2.90 million (31 March 2024 2 0.70 million) contribution in respect of provident fund.

Defined benefit plan
The Group has the following Defined Benefit Plans:

® Gratuity (Unfunded)
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© Compensated absences (Unfunded)

Risks associated with plan provisions

Discount rate risk Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the j
plan’s liability.

Moxtality risk Actual death & liability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the
valuation can impact the liabilities.

Salary risk
Actual salary increase will increase the Plan's liability. Increase in salary
increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.

Withdrawal risk Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals
and change of withdrawal rares at subsequent valuations can impact
Plan’s liability.

Granity

Actuarial gain/ (loss) recognized in other comprehensive income

(X in million)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Actuarial {gain)/loss on atising from change in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss on atising from change in financial assumptions 0.50 0.40
Actuarial (gain)/loss on atising from change in experience adjustments (7.10) 1.60
Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss is as under: (R in million)
For the year
For the year ended . ended
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March, 2024
Service cost 2.40 3.10
Net Interest cost 1.90 1.70
Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 4.30 4.80
Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as under: ® in million)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 25.70 23.30
Current service cost 2.40 3.10
Interest cost 1.90 1.70
Actuarial (gain)/loss, net (6.60) 2.00
Benefits paid (2.80) (4.40)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 20.70 25.70
- Current 1.00 1.20
- Non-Current 19.70 24.50
For determination of the liability of the Group, the following actuarial assumptions were used:
X in million)
Particulars Gratuity
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate 6.99% 7.22%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%

Mortality table Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2012-14) (2012-14)
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These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of inde

pendent actuarial appraisers. Discount factors are

determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions ate based on management’s historical experience.

Maturity plan of Defined Benefit Obli ation (® in million)
As at As at
31 March 2025 Amount 31 March 2024 Amount
) | April 2025 - March 2026 1.00 April 2024 - March 2025 1.90
b) | April 2026 - March 2027 0.50 April 2025 - March 2026 0.40
|.©) | April 2027 - March 2028 ) 0.40 April 2026 - March 2027 0.50
d) | Aprl 2028 - March 2029 0.40 April 2027 - March 2028 0.40
) | April 2029 - March 2030 2.50 April 2028 - March 2029 0.40
April 2030 - March 2031 0.90 April 2029 - March 2030 2.10
| 8 | April 2031 onwards 15.00 April 2030 onwards 20.00
Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability ® in million)
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 20.70 25.70
|_a) | Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (1.10) (1.50)
b) | Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 1.20 1.60
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 20.70 25.70
2) | Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 1.20 1.60
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (1.10) (1.50)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not material & hence impact of change not calculated.

Compensated absences

of provision has been presented as current and temaining as non-current.

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligation:

(R in million)
For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in financial assumptions 0.10 0.10
Actuarial (pain)/loss on atising from change in experience assumptions (2.40) (1.10)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on atising from Change in Demographic Assumption - -

Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss is as under:

(X in million)
For the year For the year
ended ended
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Service cost 4.80 1.20
Net Interest cost 0.50 0.40
Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year (2.40) (0.90)
Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 2.70 0.70

X in million)
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Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as under:

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 6.30 5.70
Current service cost 4.80 1.20
Interest cost 0.50 0.40
Benefits paid (1.20) -
Actuarial (gain)/loss, net (2.40) (1.00)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 8.00 6.30
- Current 0.60 0.30
- Non-Current 7.40 6.00

For determination of the liability of the Group, the follo

wing actuarial assumptions were used:

Compensated absences j
Particulars For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Discount rate 7.15% 7.22%
Salaty escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality table Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality

(2012-14) (2012-14)

As the Group does not have an

assets has not been presented.

Maturity plan of Defined Benefit Obligation

y plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan

(X in million)
As at As at
31 March 2025 Amount 31 March 2024 Amount
a) | April 2025 - March 2026 0.70 April 2024 - March 2025 0.30
b) | April 2026 - March 2027 0.10 April 2025 - March 2026 0.40
©) [ April 2027 - March 2028 0.10 April 2026 - March 2027 0.10
| d) | April 2028 - March 2029 0.20 April 2027 - March 2028 0.10
€)_| April 2029 - March 2030 0.70 April 2028 - March 2029 0.10
April 2030 - March 2031 0.30 April 2029 - March 2030 0.40
| & | Apzil 2031 onwards 5.90 April 2030 onwards 4.90

Sensitivity analysis for compensated absences liability

 in million)

As at As ar!
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 8.00 6.30
| @) | Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 0.50) (0.40)
b) | Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 0.50 0.40
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 8.00 6.30
2) | Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 0.50 0.40
b) | Impact due to decrease of 0.50 Yo (0.50) (0.40)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not materia] & hence impact of change not calculated.
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Note- 48
Code on Social Security, 2020

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the Group
towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social
Secutity, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stake holders which are under active consideration by the
Ministry. Based on an initial assessment by the Group, the additional impact on Provident Fund contributions by the Group is

Note- 49
Contingent liabilities and commitments

Legal Case:

customers where legal matters are pending.

Bank Guarantee:

Guarantee provided by the bank (secured by way of fixed deposits of the Group): ¥ 5.80 million (Previous year ¥ 45.10 million).

Disputed with tax authorities:

® in million)

Particulars As at As at

31 Mazsch 2025 31 March 2024
Income tax demand in respect of which appeals have been filed for A.Y 2011 17.90 17.90
12(260A-Appeal )
Matter related to Value Added Tax in respect of VAT credit claimed on WIP in 6.40 6.40
Trans-1 as at 30.06.2017. (Appeal is pending before Joint Commissioner of State
Taxes)
Matter in respect of ITC, CGST Trans-1 credit, possession charges etc related to 16.80 16.80

the period from July 2017 to March 2018 (Appeal is pending before Dy.
Commissioner of State Tax)

Matter related to Goods and Service Tax Actin respect to ITC, possession
charges etc related to the financial year 2018-19 (Show cause notice received 35.90 35.90
from Dy. Commissioner of State Tax)

Matter in respect Excise Duty, appeal pending before CESTAT, Mumbai related 19.70 19.70
to the petiod from FY 2011-12 to Feb 2016 ' ]

~There are no other contingent liabilities and commitments to be reported as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

Note- 50
Segmental information
The Group's primary business segment is reflected based on principal business activities carried on by the Group ie. development

of real estate projects and all other related activities which as per Ind AS 108 on ‘Segment Reporting’ is considered to be the only
teportable business segment. The Group is operating in India which is considered as a single geographical segment.
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Note- 51

Reconciliation of Habilities arising from financing activities pursuant to Ind AS 7 - Cash flows

A. The changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as following below:

(R in million)
Particulars Non-current Current borrowings Interest Total
borrowings accrued

Net debt as at 31 March 2023 1,602.70 10,668.60 0.60 12,271.90
Proceeds from borrowings 1,200.00 1,612.30 - 2,812.30
Repayment of borrowings (1,820.60) (323.80) - (2,144.40)
Interest Expense - - 315.10 315.10
Interest Paid - - (307.00) (307.00)
Other adjustments ~ (344.50) - (344.50)
Net debt as at 31 March 2024 982.10 11,612.60 8.70 12,603.40
Proceeds from borrowings 1,100.00 1,554.80 - 2,654.80
Repayment of borrowings (1,046.70) (1,088.30) - (2,135.00)
Interest and other finance cost - - 149.60 149.60
Interest and other finance cost paid - - (158.30) (158.30)
IND AS adjustments 28.90 - - 28.90
Other adjustments - 344.50 - 344.50
Net debt as at 31 March 2025 1,064.30 12,423.60 - 13,487.90

B.  The changes in the Group’s lease liabilities atising from financing activities can be classified as follows:

(% in million)

Particulars Amount
Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2023 (current and non-current) -
Recognition of lease contracts -
Interest on lease liabilities -
Payment of lease liabilities -
De-recognition of lease contracts -
Lease liabilities as at 31 March 2024 (current and non-current) -
Recognition of lease contracts 4.80
Interest on lease liabilities 0.70
Payment of lease liabilities (1.40)
De-recognition of lease contracts -
Lease liabilities as at 31 March 2025 (current and non-current) 4.10

Note- 52

Audit trail

trail cannot be disabled. The interpretation and guidance on what level edit log and audit trail needs to be maintained evolved
during the year and continues to evolve.

The Group has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account for the yeat, which have features of recording
audit trail {edit log) facility at application level as well as database level and the same have been operated throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares except one software where audit trial (edit log) facility at database level was not
available. Recording of audit trail {edit logs) can be disabled using restricted privileged rights for direct data changes at database
level. Since the Group has other necessary controls in place, which are operating effectively, this feature will not adversely impact
its data and audit log retention directly at database level,

Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by

2023 to 31 March 2024.
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Note- 53

Group information

Information about subsidiaries

The information about subsidiaries of the Holding
down subsidiaries as well.

Company is as follows. The below table includes the information abour step

Name of subsidiary

Country of Proportion of

ownership

Proportion of

incorporation ownership

interest as at

31 March 2024

interest as at

31 March 2025

Albina Real Estate Limited
Airmid Properties Limited

Nilgiri Infrastructure Development Limited India 100% 1007
Ceres Constructions Limited India 100% 1000,
Fama Infrastructure Limited India 100% 1007 |
Vindhyachal Infrastructure Limired India 100°%% 10024
Shivalik Properties Limited India ‘ 100%% 1007 %
Noble Realtors Limited India 100% 100"

s

India

India

100°
100

Corus Real Estate Limited

India 100%

Devona Infrastructure Limited

Serida Properties Limited

India
India

100%

Note- 54
Additional information as required by paragraph 2 of the
statements to Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013

general instructions for preparation of consolidated financial

[ Name of the entity Net assets i.e. total Share in profit or Share in other Share in total 1
assets minus total loss comprehensive comprehensive }
liabilities income income i
As % of Amount | As % of | Amount As % of | Amount | As % of Amount 1}
consoli- ®in consoli- ® in consoli- ®in consoli- | (¥ in f
dated net million) dated million) dated million) dated | million) f
assets figures figures figures |
Lucina Land 9471% | (10,528.20) 10120% | (1,664.00) | 100.00% | 6.60 | 101.21% | (1.657.40) f
Development Limited
Nilgiri Infrastructure 0.56% (65.50) 0.00% 0.00 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00
Development Limited
Ceres Constructions 0.00% 0.30 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00% 0.00
Limited
Fama Infrastructure -0.02% 210 -0.10% 1.70 0.00% -0.10% ‘i
Limited
Vindhyachal 0.00% (0.50) 0.00% 0.00 0.00% - 0.00% | 0.00 7;
Infrastructure Limited I I R i '
Shivalik Properties 0.04% (4.60) 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00% 0.00
Limited B J
Noble Realtors 1.18% (131.50 -1.12% 18.40 0.00% - -1.12% 18.40
Limited B j
Albina Real Estate 1.58% (175.40) 0.02% (0.30) 0.00%% 0.02% (0. “3()\ |
Limited } f
Airmid Properties 0.00% (0.30) 0.00%% 0.00 0.00%% .] 0.00% O,U()?
Limited
Corus Real Estate -0.31% 34.50 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00% 0.00
Limited {




Lucina Land Development Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for consolidated financial statements for

the year ended 31 March 2025

Devona Infrastructure 0.27% (30.10) 0.00% 0.00 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00
Limited
Serida Properties 1.98% | (219.70) 0.00% 0.00 0.00% - 0.00% | 000
Limited
Total 100.00% | (11,115.90) 100.00% (1,644.20)  100.00% 6.60 | 100.00% | (1,637.60)
Note- 55

Exceptional items

During the financial year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has assessed the financial viability of its ongoing real estate
development project as an onerous contract in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 37 - Provisions, Contingenr
Liabilities and Contingent Assets. Due to adverse market conditions, escalated construction costs, and a reduction in expected
sales revenue from the project, the unavoidable costs of fulfilling the contracrual obligations under the Project exceed the expected
economic benefits. Accordingly, the Company has recognized a provision of T 918.70 million in respect of the estimared loss on
the Project.

Exceptional item for the year ended 31 March 2024 is on account of provision for temporary decline in the value of investment
made in optionally convertible debentures of Sentia Developers Limited amounting to ¥ 720.30 million, by one of group company,
based on the internal assessments of the management

Note- 56
Business Combination of Holding Company

The Hon'ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi Bench ("NCLAT"), on 7 January 2025, approved the scheme
of amalgamaton of Nam Estates Private Limited ("NAM") and Embassy One Commercial Property Developments Private
Limited ("EOCPDPL") with Embassy Developments Limited ("EDL") (formerly known as Equinox India Developments Limited
and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) and their respective shareholders and creditors ("Scheme”) pursuant to sec 230 to 232
of the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable provisions of the Act, read with Companies {Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016. Pursuant to the NCLAT Order, EDL and NAM have filed the certified true copy of the court order
with the respective jurisdictional Registrar of Companies on 24 January 2025, thereby giving effect 1o the scheme ("F ffective

Date").

Subsequent to the scheme becoming effective, a few of the current NAM shareholders, mamely JV Holding Private Limited
(VHPL), four individuals, and two other entities (referred to as the "Promoter/Promoter Group"), became the largest
shareholders of the EDL, the holding company's holding company.

Note- 57
Goodwill on consolidation

Goodwill represents the cost of acquired business as established at the date of acquisition of the business in excess of the acquirer’s
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or when events or circumstances indicate that the implied fair value of goodwill is less

than its carrying amount,

CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequentdy when there is indicarion for
impairment. The financial projections basis which the future cash flows have been estmarted consider economic uncerrainties,
reassessment of the discount rates, revisiting the growth rates factored while arriving at terminal value and subjecting these
variables to sensitivity analysis. If the recoverable amount of a CGU is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rara on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unir.
Goodwill consists of the following:

(X in million)

Particulars As at As at 1
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.00 000
Impaired during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 0.00 0.00

FRN- (204
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Note- 58
Other matters

For Raj

The Group has not entered into any derivative instrument during the year. The Group does not have any foreign currency
exposures towards receivables, payables or any other derivative instrument that have not been hedged.

In respect of amounts as mentioned under Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, there were no dues required to be
credited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all current assets and long-term loans & advances, appearing in the balance sheet
as at 31 March 2025, have a value on realization, in the ordinary course of the Group’s business, at least equal to the amount
at which they are stated in the financial statements. In the opinion of the board of directors, no provision is required to be
made against the recoverability of these balances.

The Holding Company is a wholly owned subsidiary company of Embassy Developments Limited (Formetly Equinox
India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) whether directly or indirectly which is having a net
worth of ¥101,709.80 million. The Group will get all necessary support financially and otherwise from its holding company
and thus, the Group is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
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